
City of MISSION 
City Hall  6090 Woodson Street  Mission, Kansas 66202 

Community development Department   
(913) 6768360  Fax (913) 7226318 

 
 
 

CITY OF MISSION 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

AGENDA 
July 27, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 
1. Approval of the Minutes of the June 22, 2015 meeting 
 
2. Application #1502 VariancePublic Hearing 

5605 W 49th StreetFront Yard Setback 
Application 
Staff Report 
Exhibits 
 

3. Application #1503 VariancePublic Hearing 
5820 Lamar AvenueMonument Sign 
Application 
Staff Report 
Exhibits 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Please contact Nakeisha at 6768362 if you will be unable to attend. 
 

1 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
JUNE 22ND, 2015  

 
The regular meeting of the City of Mission Board of Zoning Appeals was called to order by                                 
Chair Jim Brown at 6:30 PM Monday, June 22th, 2015. Members also present: Mike Lee,                             
Robin Dukelow, Stuart Braden and Carla Mills. Also in attendance: City Planner Danielle                         
Murray and Board of Zoning Appeals Secretary Nakeisha Cooper. 

 
ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 
Mr. Braden moved to nominate Mr. Brown for the Board of Zoning Chairman. Mrs. 
Dukelow seconded the motion. The vote was taken, all voting AYE. (5.0.0). The motion 
carried. 
 
Mrs. Dukelow moved to nominate Mr. Braden for Board of Zoning Vice Chairman. Mr. Lee 
seconded the motion. The vote was taken, all voting AYE. (401) with one abstention 
(Braden). The motion carried. 
 
Mrs. Dukelow moved to nominate Nakeisha Cooper for Board of Zoning Secretary. 
Mr. Braden seconded the motion. The vote was taken, all voting AYE. (500).  
The motion carried. 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 27TH 2014 
 
Mrs. Dukelow moved and Mr. Braden seconded a motion to approve the minutes of the 
October 27th, 2014 meeting. The vote was taken (401) with one abstention (Mills). The 
motion carried. 
 
 

Jim Brown read the BZA rules of procedures into the record. 
 
 

CASE#1501 VARIANCE  PUBLIC HEARING 
6120 W. 64TH STREET  REAR YARD FENCE HEIGHT  

 
Ms. Murray presented the staff report. 
 
The subject property is currently zoned Single Family Residential “R1”, was constructed in 
1965, and has changed owners in the last year. The new owners of the home wish to 
replace the existing fence along their rear property line. The current fence is 8’ in height 
and backs up to Kennett Place Townhomes which is adjacent to the north. The townhome 
development also has a fence in the area. The townhome fence is a wood panel fence 6’ 
in height of a “goodneighbor” design (panels alternate sides of posts). No fence permit is 
on 
file for either of the existing fences as they likely predate the requirement for a permit or 
are not detailed on the construction drawings available. No prior variances are on file for 
the subject property. The subject property has an outdoor pool in the rear yard. Kennett 
Place was constructed in phases over a period of time ranging from 19851998. 
The townhomes immediately adjacent to the subject property were constructed in 1986. 
As with all fence applications, it is the responsibility of the private property owners to 

1 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
JUNE 22ND, 2015  

establish the correct ownership and siting of the proposed fence. 
 
 
Ms. Dukelow asked staff if a part of the code references the height of the fence in relation 
to the swimming pool. Also how many other properties adhere to the fence code along the 
property lines. 
 
Ms. Murray explained that the code states the height of the fence has to be at least 6 feet 
and there are other fences along the property line that meet the requirement. 
 
Mr. Braden asked if the city records note the height limit on fencing in this particular area. 
 
Ms. Murray stated that she is uncertain about the fence code before 2000, however the 
current codes states 6 feet. 
 
Ms. Mills asked if there are other fences in the area that are 8 feet tall. 
 
Ms. Murray replied that she was uncertain, staff did not perform a field survey. 
 
Ms. Dukelow explained to staff that the site plan indicates 6 feet on the East & West side 
of the property. Ms. Dukelow then asked if there are any regulations concerning the entire 
perimeter of the property. 
 
Ms. Murray explained that no one individual could have something different than another, 
and the fence code only regulates the height and location of the fence 
 
Ms. Knight stated that a portion of the fence is already 8 feet based on the slope of the 
ground. The main purpose of the variance is to maintain a level of privacy and to repair 
the fence due to the current appearance. 
 
Ms. Dukelow asked the applicant what the plans are for the East, West and South side. 
 
Ms. Knapp explained that the plan is to replace the fence in it’s entirety. 
 
Mr. Lee asked the applicant to explain why they believe the fence is a present hardship. 
 
Ms. Knapp explained that when they purchased the house, the privacy that the fence 
provided was a driving factor. The fence is already 8 feet in an area, and they would like 
to keep the same height around the perimeter of the property. 
 
Mr. Brown opened the Public Hearing……………………… 
 
Tamra Knapp located at 6120 W. 64th Terrace, came forth and explained that she is not 
in agreement with the zoning approval, and is against the approval. She believes 
everyone’s fence should be uniform. 
 
Mary Owens located at 6404 Beverly Drive came forth and explained that the variance is 
not necessary.  Ms. Owens stated that the fence is unsightly and it would not be in 

2 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
JUNE 22ND, 2015  

uniform with any of the other’s in the area; and in her opinion should not have been 
allowed in the first place. Ms Owens also questions whether or not the fence could have 
been grandfathered in. 
 
Ms. Murray explained that it could have been grandfather in and would have to had been 
approved. 
 
Wayne Stallard located at 6107 W. 64th Terrace came forth and explained that if the 
height was approved for the North side,  you would also have to approve it for the West 
side. Each fence should meet the same requirement, they should be the same size and 
height.  
 
Earle Brigance located at 6210 W. 64th Terrace came forth and stated that they are 
neighbors and he has no objection to the fence, his only recommendation would be to 
repair it. 
 
Audrey Irick located at 6217 W. 64th Terrace came forth and asked if Milhaven had it’s 
own fence code in which the applicant has to abide by. 
 
Mr. Brown explained that the BZA only addresses the City Ordinance, they do not address 
Homeowner Association codes and regulations. 
 
Mr. Norman located at 6404 Beverly Drive came forth and explained that an 8 foot fence 
would be an eyesore and he is opposed to the variance. A 6 foot foot fence seems 
sufficient and anything larger should not be allowed. 
 
Mr. Brown closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Lee asked staff if the number of pools in milhaven. 
 
Ms. Murray stated that she isn’t sure, there are approximately 12 or 13 other properties 
that surround Kennett Place, but she is unsure of the exact height of the others. 
 
Ms. Dukelow stated that there are other surrounding properties with fencing that varies 
somewhere between 4 and 8 feet in height. The elevation varies in each case. 
Ms. Dukelows suggests a landscaping solution to the height issue. 
 
Mr. Braden asked for grade to be explained 
 
Ms Murray responded by explaining how fence height is measured and how the topline of 
a fence may or may not follow grade. 
 
Mr. Lee moved and Mrs. Dukelow seconded a motion to accept the applicant’s findings 
of fact and approve the variance for an 8 foot fence along the north property line   
 
The vote was taken. (230)   The motion failed per the rules of procedures of the 
Board of Zoning Appeals. 

 
3 



 
 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING 
JUNE 22ND, 2015  

 
 
 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no other agenda items, Mrs Dukelow moved and Mr.Braden seconded a motion                         
to adjourn. The vote was unanimous. The motion carried. The meeting adjourned at                         
7:10 P.M. 

___________________________________ 
ATTEST: Jim Brown, Chair   
  
_______________________________   
Nakeisha Cooper 
Board of Zoning Appeals Secretary 

4 



















STAFF REPORT 
Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting July 27, 2015 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 2 
 
PROJECT NUMBER / TITLE: Variance Application # 1502 

Variance to required front yard  
 
REQUEST: Application for variance to Section 410.010.D front yards in 

the “R1” district 
 
LOCATION: 5605 W 49th Street 

Mission, Kansas 66202 
 
OWNER:       Ronny Brock 

5605 49th Street 
Mission, KS  66202 

 
APPLICANT: Paul Lillig 

Accessibility Remodeling 
6025 Metcalf Ln #320, 
Overland Park, KS  66202 

 
ADVERTISEMENT:     6/30/2015 The Legal Record Newspaper 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:      7/27/2015BZA 

 
BACKGROUND 
INFORMATION: 
The existing building was 
constructed in 1956 as a 
residential home.  The 
application indicates that the 
home has been in the current 
owner’s family since that time. 
Over the years, the homeowner 
has made interior alterations to 
adapt the space for his use. 
Following a recent 
hospitalization, the homeowner 
is requesting that exterior 
alterations be allowed to 
continue the same.  Information 
submitted by the homeowner’s 
doctor and brother is included in 
the packet.  The proposed 
alteration includes a front deck 
and handicap accessible ramp 

1 
 



which extends into the required front yard area.   
 
The subject property is zoned SingleFamily Residential “R1” district.  The Comprehensive Plan 
indicates this area is appropriate for residential low density development. 
 
The adjacent properties are all developed.  To the north is a sewage treatment facility, to the 
east/west/south are detached residential homes similar to the subject property. 
 
CODE REVIEW 
The “R1” District requires that front yard a minimum of 20’30’ in depth be maintained.  This 
request is to allow the construction of a deck and ramp on the subject property with a reduction 
to the setback.  The applicant is requesting the the setback from the property line be reduced 
from 30’ feet to 16’ to accommodate the deck and ramp.  Approval of this variance does not 
constitute approval of the specific structure shown, only the change in the zoning code 
requirements which would allow the applicant to submit a building permit application that meets 
the new standards. 
 

 
Applicable Ordinances  
Section 410.010.D: 
 
Front Yards.  Any building hereafter constructed 
shall provide for a front yard, the minimum 
depth of which shall be at least thirty (30) feet. 
The setback may be reduced to twenty (20) 
feet, if the following conditions are met. 
 
1.The setback reduction is for an attached living 
area or covered porch to the principal structure, 
not including the garage, which does not 
exceed a total of one hundred twenty (120) 
square feet of above grade finished livable 

space. 
 
2.The exterior materials of the proposed living area or porch are consistent or complementary in 
color, texture and quality with those visible at the front of the dwelling. 
 
3.The roof and design of the proposed living area or porch is properly proportioned to and 
integrated with the dwelling. 
 
4.Plans are approved by the Planning Commission. 
5.The structure does not adversely affect drainage on the lot or neighboring properties. 
 
Section 405.020 Definitions 
A yard is defined as: 
An open space at grade between a building and the adjoining lot lines, unoccupied and 
unobstructed by any portion of a structure from the ground upward, except as otherwise 
provided.  In measuring a yard for the purpose of determining the width of a side yard, the depth 

2 
 



of a front yard or the depth of a rear yard, the least horizontal distance between the lot line and 
the building shall be used. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The Board of Zoning Appeals has the authority to grant variances to Section Title IV. Land Use 
of the Municipal Code.  Granting of the requested variance would allow City Staff to approve a 
building permit application that complies with the new standards set by the variance.  When 
considering applications for a variance the BZA usually considers the following findings as per 
City Code Section 450.060.D, granting a variance upon a finding that all of the following 
conditions have been met: 
 
a.   The variance requested arises from such condition which is unique to the property in 
question, is not ordinarily found in the same zone or district and is not created by an action or 
actions of the property owner or the applicant. 
 
b.   The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent property owners 
or residents. 
 
c.   The strict application of the provisions of this Title would constitute unnecessary hardship 
upon the property owner represented in the application. 
 
d.   The variance desired will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, 
convenience, prosperity or general welfare. 
 
e.   Granting the variance will not be opposed to the general spirit and intent of this Title. 
 
Due to the nature of this request, the City’s attorney has advised that the following three criteria 
be used to make a determination on this case instead as there appears to be adequate 
evidence to demonstrate a medical/physical need for the alteration.  The City’s attorney has 
indicated that Federal Disability and Fair Housing laws require public entities to make 
reasonable modifications in policies, practices or procedures when the modifications are 
necessary to avoid discrimination on the basis of disability.  
 
1.       Is the applicant or person to be accommodated disabled? 
 
The City’s attorney has reviewed the materials submitted and agrees that adequate evidence 
has been presented to establish a medical or physical need for a ramp entrance. 
 
2.       Is the variance reasonably necessary to accommodate the disability? 
 
In order to construct any addition to the existing building a variance would be required as the 
current home is already located at the limit of the front setback.  The variance requested is no 
more than the minimum needed to add a front deck and ramp.  A variance is the appropriate 
zoning relief to be requested. 
 
3.       Would the variance fundamentally and unreasonably alter the nature or purposes of the 
zoning ordinance? 
 

3 
 



In land use, a front setback is the distance which a building or other structure is set back from a 
street or road.  The purpose of establishing a zoning setback standard is both to provide a 
uniform open area or front yard and to control the density of development in a neighborhood by 
establishing a maximum buildable area.  The requested variance to add a front entry feature 
would not increase the density (number of housing units per acre) of the lot nor significantly alter 
the open area of the front yard. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
I move to approve the proposed variance as requested reducing the front yard setback for 
property located at 5605 w 49th Street from 30’ to 16 for the construction of a front deck and 
ramp’. 
 
 

4 
 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Land_use
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Building
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Structure
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Street
















































STAFF REPORT 
Board of Zoning Appeals Meeting July 27, 2015 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 3 
 
PROJECT # / TITLE: Variance Application # 1503, Sign ordinance 

 
REQUEST: Application for variance to Section 430.090.E to allow for the 

placement of a monument sign in a C2A District. 
 
LOCATION: 5820 Lamar Ave 

Mission, Kansas 66202 
 
OWNER:  Brill Investors, L.L.C. 

5820 Lamar Ave 
Mission, KS  66202 

 
APPLICANT:     Dr Raymond Brill 

   
ADVERTISEMENT:     6/30/2015  The Legal Record Newspaper 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:    7/27/2015BZA 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The subject property is currently zoned Pedestrian Oriented Business District “C2A” and is 
located mid block north of Johnson Drive between Lamar Avenue and Russell Street on Lot 3 of 
the Holly Grove subdivision.  The property was developed as an office building in 2002.  In 2003 
sign permit applications were received and approved for wall signs.  Signs are not approved at 
the time of site plan review but by the sign permit application process.  At this time the applicant 
is requesting a variance in order to allow for the addition of a monument sign to the site 
consistent with the monument sign dimensional requirements of the current sign code 
430.090(B)(2).  This zoning district does not allow for monument signs by right. 
 

1 
 



CODE REVIEW 
The Pedestrian Oriented Business District “C2A” was assigned to this property in 1998 at the 
time of an owner requested rezoning which allowed for the development of the Holly Grove 
subdivision lots immediately adjacent to Johnson Drive (Eckerd/CVS and Schlotzsky's/Qdoba). 
The “C2A” District encourages retail and service establishments where the consumer enters 
one (1) or more places of business to accomplish his/her purpose, where several business 
transactions may be conducted without using a motor vehicle, and where contiguous storefront 
and display window architecture is the rule. It predates the Main Street District 1 and 2 districts 
designed to reinforce and encourage the existing character within the core of the downtown. 
The Mission sign code designates the appropriate sign types, numbers, and dimensions based 
on zoning districts.  In the Pedestrian Oriented Business District “C2A”, monument signs are 
not an allowable sign type for businesses except for those properties that may also contain 
residential units. 

There are approximately 39 parcels in the 
downtown and immediate neighborhood (West 
Gateway or Downtown District along Johnson 
Drive) which were or are zoned “C2A”. Of the 
39, 11 are similar to the subject property.  That 
is, they are parcels containing multitenant office 
buildings that are freestanding structures rather 
than attached row buildings. Only a few 
properties remain zoned Pedestrian Oriented 
Business District “C2A”.  These are located 
exclusively in the West Gateway District and 
include the Brill Office Building, Mission West 
Shopping Center, the former Backyard Burger 
site,  the Consolidated Fire District #2 office, and 
a Pawn shop.  These properties are highlighted 

in red on the map above.   All other “C2A”properties in Mission were converted to Main Street 
District 2 “MS2” designations at the time the city master rezoning of the downtown in 2006. 
Main Street District 2 allows for monument signs with conditions.  The map below shows the 
location of properties formerly zoned C2A in the Downtown and East Gateway Districts. 
 

 
 
 

2 
 



From 20002015 the Board of Zoning Appeals has heard 10 other variance requests regarding 
monument signs as detailed below. 

 
Applicable Ordinances  
SECTION 430.090:SIGNS PERMITTED IN COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS 
E. Districts "C2A", "MS1" And "MS2". 
 

1. Each business or commercial establishment shall be permitted signage as follows: 
a. Three (3) wall signs, not more than one (1) on a facade, provided that the 

area of each sign shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total area of the facade upon which 
it is placed.  Such signs shall not extend above the height of the wall upon which they are 
mounted. 

b. In lieu of one (1) of the wall signs, one (1) projecting sign shall be permitted 
for each establishment, provided that the area of such projecting sign does not exceed ten 
percent (10%) of the total area of the facade upon which it is attached or ten (10) square feet, 
whichever is more, and does not extend above the roof level of the building where the sign is 
located.  The lowest point of such sign must be a minimum of seven (7) feet above the ground 
or sidewalk. 

c. A combination of a wall sign and projecting sign shall also be allowed, in 
which case the total area of both signs shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the total area of 
the facade upon which the signs are attached.  The projecting sign shall not be more than ten 
(10) square feet. 
 

2. In addition to the permitted wall signs, one (1) pedestrian oriented sign per 
business entry shall be permitted to be placed beneath a nonretractable awning and/or canopy 
that extends from the building.  Such sign shall be limited to three (3) square feet in area and 
may be internally illuminated.  The lowest point of such sign must be a minimum of seven (7) 
3 
 



feet above the ground or sidewalk.  In lieu of said pedestrian oriented sign, one (1) 
nonilluminated identification sign, not more than three (3) square feet in area, may be placed on 
the wall at each major entrance to the building.  The highest point of the sign may be no higher 
than seven (7) feet above the sidewalk. 
 

3. Project identification signs for a residential project may be permitted at each 
entrance to the project.  All project identification signs shall be monument signs and, except as 
hereinafter provided, shall be located on the premises.  Such signs shall not exceed six (6) feet 
in height above the average grade and the sign face shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet in 
area per face.  If not sitting within the landscaped setback, the sign base shall be located within 
a curbed landscaped area extending a minimum of three (3) feet on all sides of the sign base. 
Where a project is situated on both sides of a public or private street, one (1) project 
identification sign may be located on each side of the street or, alternatively, one (1) project 
identification sign may be located in a landscaped median with the approval of the Planning 
Commission.  Where a project identification sign is to be located in the public rightofway, plans 
shall be submitted to the Planning Commission indicating the location, size and design of the 
project identification sign as well as a copy of the bylaws or other documentation of the 
association which will have permanent responsibility for maintenance of the sign and required 
landscaping. 
 

4. On property zoned "MS2", monument signs are permitted subject to the following 
restrictions: 

a. One (1) detached monument sign shall be permitted for each building in lieu 
of one (1) wall sign or projecting sign; provided however, that in the case of a shopping center 
designed as one (1) unified entity and consisting of one (1) or several buildings, either attached 
or freestanding, one (1) detached monument sign shall be permitted for the entire center. 

b. The minimum setback from the rightofway line to the closest building or 
buildings on the lot must be equal to or greater than fifteen (15) feet. 

c. Such sign shall not exceed six (6) feet in height above average grade and 
the sign face shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet in area per face.  If not sitting within the 
landscaped setback, the sign base shall be located within a curbed landscaped area which is 
equal to or greater than two hundred (200) square feet. 

d. The minimum setback for the monument sign is ten (10) feet. 
 

5. Monument signs are not permitted in the "C2A" and "MS1" Districts unless a 
sufficient ten (10) foot setback exists for such a sign. 
 

6. In the area defined in Section 410.330 as the Downtown District, the following 
requirements shall apply: 

a. Window signs are geared towards pedestrians and therefore should be no 
larger than ten percent (10%) of the storefront glazing.  Signs should be of a permanent nature 
applied directly on the glass.  No placards or poster board panels leaning in windows are 
allowed, except for open/closed signs that shall be no larger than one (1) square foot. 

b. No canopies, panels or awnings which span through two (2) or more 
storefronts shall be allowed.  Backlit awnings are permitted only if the awning is opaque.  If a 
portion of a backlit awning is not opaque, then that portion shall be considered a "sign". 
 
 

4 
 



430.090(B)(2) 
...one (1) detached monument sign for each building shall be permitted. Such sign shall not 
exceed six (6) feet in height above the average grade and the sign face shall not exceed fifty 
(50) square feet in area per face if located at least ten (10) feet from the public street 
rightofway or private street curb line. For each additional two (2) foot setback from the public 
street rightofway or private street curb line over ten (10) feet, one (1) additional foot may be 
added to the height of the sign to a maximum of ten (10) feet. If not sitting within the landscaped 
setback, the sign base shall be located within a curbed landscaped area extending a minimum 
of three (3) feet on all sides of the sign base. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The Board of Zoning Appeals has the authority to grant variances to Section Title IV. Land Use 
of the Municipal including the sign code.  Granting of the requested variance would allow staff to 
approve a sign permit for the placement of a monument sign on the subject property that 
complies with the new standards set by the variance.  The applicant is requesting approval of a 
variance for one monument sign per building in addition to any signs already allowable under 
code.  Such sign shall not exceed six (6) feet in height above the average grade and the sign 
face shall not exceed fifty (50) square feet in area per face located at least ten (10) feet from the 
public street rightofway or private street curb line.  For each additional two (2) foot setback 
from the public street rightofway or private street curb line over ten (10) feet, one (1) additional 
foot may be added to the height of the sign to a maximum of ten (10) feet. If not sitting within the 
landscaped setback, the sign base shall be located within a curbed landscaped area extending 
a minimum of three (3) feet on all sides of the sign base.  When considering applications for a 
variance the BZA may only grant a variance upon a finding that all of the following conditions 
have been met: 
 
a.   The variance requested arises from such condition which is unique to the property in 
question, is not ordinarily found in the same zone or district and is not created by an action or 
actions of the property owner or the applicant. 
 
b.   The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent property owners 
or residents. 
 
c.   The strict application of the provisions of this Title would constitute unnecessary hardship 
upon the property owner represented in the application. 
 
d.   The variance desired will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, 
convenience, prosperity or general welfare. 
 
e.   Granting the variance will not be opposed to the general spirit and intent of this Title. 
 
POSSIBLE MOTION 
I move to approve the proposed variance as requested allowing for a monument sign for 
property located at 5820 Lamar Avenue. 
 
 
 
 
 

5 
 



  
Excerpt from Master Rezoning 2006 Showing Previous Zoning of Properties 

 
 
 

6 
 


	BZAAgenda7.27.15
	6.22.15BZAMinutes (1)
	1-BZA Application 15-02
	2-BZACase15-02StaffReport
	3-BP application 5605 49th St
	4-Ramp details
	5-artist sketch
	1-Application 15-03
	2-BZACase15-03StaffReport

